
Agenda 
Lucas Parks and Open Space Board Meeting  

May 26, 2015  
7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas 
 

Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Parks & Open Space Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, May 26, 
2015 at 7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas at which time the following agenda 
will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Parks & Open Space Board 
many convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City 
Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

Regular Agenda 
1. Consider approval of the minutes of the April 21, 2015 and April 29, 2015 Parks and 

Open Space Board meetings. [City Secretary Stacy Henderson] 
 

2. Consider activities associated with Founders Day scheduled to be held on Saturday, 
October 24, 2015 at the Community Park. [Development Services Director Joe 
Hilbourn] 
 

3. Consider reviewing the inventory of existing parks and open space to facilitate updating 
the Comprehensive Plan and to provide guidance to staff on conducting a community 
survey regarding parks, open space and recreation needs. [Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn] 
 

4. Consider cancelling the June 23, 2015 Parks and Open Space Board meeting.  
[Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn] 

5. Adjournment. 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002-7651 and on the City’s website at 
www.lucastexas.us by 5:00 p.m. on or before Friday, May 22, 2015. 

 
____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
City Secretary 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 972-727-8999 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space  

Agenda Request 
May 26, 2015 

 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider approval of the minutes of the April 21, 2015 and April 29, 2015 Parks and Open 
Space Board meetings.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Minutes of the April 21, 2015 Parks and Open Space Board meeting.  
2. Minutes of the April 29, 2015 Parks and Open Space Board special meeting. 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the April 21, 2015 and the April 29, 2015 Parks and Open 
Space Board minutes. 
  
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/amend the minutes of the April 21, 2015 and April 29, 2015 Parks 
and Open Space Board meeting.  



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS   
Parks and Open Space Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2015  

Parks and Open Space  
Board Meeting 
April 21, 2015  

7:00 p.m. 
City Hall – 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 
Chairman Rhoads called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
Chairman David Rhoads 
Vice Chairman Christopher Vanhorn 
Member Valerie Turnbow 
Member Kenneth Patterson 
Member Brenda Rizos 
Alternate Member Amber Patteson  
Alternate Member Jerry Straka 
 

City Council Representative: 
City Council Member Steve Duke 

Staff: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
Development Services Director Joe Hillbourn 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
 

 

 
Chairman Rhoads determined that a Quorum was present and reminded all in attendance to 
silence their cell phones.  The Board conducted the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Regular Agenda 
 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the March 24, 2015 Parks and Open Space 
Board meeting.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chairman Vanhorn, seconded by Member Patterson to 

approve the minutes as submitted.  The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.  
 
2. Update on the Keep Lucas Beautiful Cleanup Event scheduled for April 25, 2015. 
 
Development Services Director Hilbourn gave a presentation stating all supplies had been 
ordered for the cleanup event as well as refreshments afterwards. The route was discussed as 
well as vehicle transportation to and from various cleanup location points. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS   
Parks and Open Space Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2015  

The Board also discussed volunteers attending, taking pictures for the event and getting school 
involvement for next year’s event.   
 
3. Discuss Scarecrow Contest guidelines associated with the Founders Day event. 
 
Member Ken Patterson gave a presentation discussing the creation of theme categories, 
advertising on the City’s website and promoting the event in the City’s newsletter.  Window 
posters and yard signs could also be used to advertise the event.  Member Patterson also 
discussed prizes for the winning scarecrows and creating a display during the Founders Day 
event.  
 
Members Ken Patterson and Amber Patteson volunteered to head the Scarecrow Committee and 
create an action plan.  
 
The Board also discussed getting commercial businesses involved as well as local schools. 
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Member Rizos, seconded by Member Turnbow to 

recommend Members Ken Patterson and Amber Patteson to lead the Committee for 
the Scarecrow Contest.  The motion passed by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
4. Discuss updates to the parks for the City’s Comprehensive Plan to include: 

• Obtaining land for community parks 
• Entrances to the City 
• Parks and open space trail plan 
• NTMWD land 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation discussing the needs the Parks 
Board should consider for the Comprehensive Plan update.  He stated the Comprehensive Plan 
will consider the needs of the City for the next 10 to 15 years.  Mr. Hilbourn stated the Board 
should also consider whether additional land acquisition was needed for additional parks and 
how the additional land could be acquired.  
 
Member Turnbow discussed providing trails for pedestrians as well as horses and identifying 
markers for those trails.   
 
Chairman Rhoads asked about funding for any projects proposed within the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
Development Services Director Hilbourn stated that all proposals within the Comprehensive Plan 
update would be reviewed and approved by the City Council. 
 
The Parks Board discussed horse trails and connecting those throughout the community.   
 
Member Turnbow and Rizos suggested having a workshop where the Board could tour and look 
at various parks and trails throughout the City. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS   
Parks and Open Space Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2015  

The Board agreed to call a special meeting for May 6 at 7:00AM to have a driving tour with 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn to look at various locations throughout the City and 
discuss park updates to the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
5. Update from Member Brenda Rizos regarding the committee that was formed for an 

indoor arena on the leased North Texas Municipal Water District property.  
 
Member Rizos stated research is being done on different riding arenas and other committee 
members will be assisting in writing grants that best address the needs and the cost associated 
with a riding arena.  Member Rizos stated that she would update the Board as more information 
becomes available.  
 

6. Adjournment. 
 

MOTION:  A motion was made by Vice Chairman Vanhorn, seconded by Member Rizos to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:42pm.  The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.  

 
 
__________________________________ 
David Rhoads, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________________ 
Stacy Hend erson, City Secretary  



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS   
Parks and Open Space Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 29, 2015  

Parks and Open Space  
Board Meeting 
April 29, 2015  

7:00 a.m. 
City Hall – 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 
Chairman Rhoads called the meeting to order at 7:17 a.m. 
 
Members Present: 
Chairman David Rhoads 
Vice Chairman Christopher Vanhorn 
Member Kenneth Patterson 
Member Brenda Rizos 
 

Members Absent: 
Alternate Member Jerry Straka 
Alternate Member Amber Patteson  
Member Valerie Turnbow 
 
 

Staff/Other Representatives: 
Development Services Director Joe Hillbourn 
Louis Frisbie, Metropolitan Infrastructure  

 

 
Chairman Rhoads determined that a Quorum was present and reminded all in attendance to 
silence their cell phones.  The Board conducted the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Regular Agenda 
 

1. Direct staff to apply for a Parks Grant for a trailhead on East Winningkoff Road.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chairman Vanhorn, seconded by Member Patterson to 

direct staff to apply for a Parks grant for a trailhead on East Winningkoff Road.  
The motion passed by a 4-0 vote.  

 
2. Take a driving tour of the following locations to discuss park improvements for the 

Comprehensive Plan update.  
a. North Texas Municipal Water District 
b. East Winningkoff Road 
c. Blondy Jhune Road 
d. Estates Parkway 
e. Ingram Road 
f. West Lucas Road 
g. Stinson Road  

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS   
Parks and Open Space Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 29, 2015  

Staff and Parks Board members left for the driving tour at 7:31am.   
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn, the City’s Consultant for the Comprehensive Plan 
Update, Louis Frisbie, and the Parks Board members toured the following locations to discuss 
park improvements related to the Comprehensive Plan update.  
 

• North Texas Municipal Water District 
• East Winningkoff Road 
• Blondy Jhune Road 
• Estates Parkway 
• Ingram Road 
• West Lucas Road 
• Stinson Road  

 
No action was taken by the Board members.  
 
The Parks Board and Staff returned to City Hall at 9:00am.  Member Valerie Turnbow joined the 
Parks Board at this time.  
 
The Parks Board and Staff discussed funding for various park projects and establishing private 
partnerships. 
 

3. Adjournment. 
 

MOTION:  A motion was made by Member Rizos, seconded by Member Patterson to adjourn 
the meeting at 9:27am.  The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.  

 
 
__________________________________ 
David Rhoads, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City of Lucas 
Park & Open Space Board Agenda 

Request May 26, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider activities associated with Founders Day scheduled to be held on Saturday, October 24, 
2015 at the Community Park. 
 
Background Information:  
 
City Staff held a meeting with Mayor Mark to discuss observations and recap the 2014 Founders 
Day event.  Staff has proceeded with organizing the first planning session for the 2015 Founders 
Day event to be held on May 20th with the following participants to serve on the 2015 Founders 
Day Planning Committee: 
 

• Chairperson of the Parks and Open Space Board David Rhoads 
• City Councilmember Liaison Steve Duke 
• Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
• Planning Coordinator Donna Bradshaw 
• Mayor/Citizen Rebecca Mark 
• City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
• Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar 
• City Manager Joni Clarke 

 
During this initial recap meeting, parade logistics, safety and participation was discussed and 
staff will be making some recommendations to the Founders Day Planning Committee. 
 
An agenda item was placed on the May 7, 2015 City Council meeting requesting  a 
recommendation from the City Council to honor a citizen by appointing a Grand Marshal to lead 
the parade.  The Grand Marshal is a resident that has greatly contributed their time and efforts to 
the betterment of the community.  The Lucas City Council appointed Charlie Gaines to serve as 
the Grand Marshal for the 2015 Founders Day Parade. 
 
Because Founders Day has been successful and it a popular event attended by many, it has 
become a necessity to clarify and define areas of responsibility to ensure the events continued 
success: 
 
The Founders Day Team may include the following structure and assignments (just suggestions): 
  



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City of Lucas 
Park & Open Space Board Agenda 

Request May 26, 2015 
 

 
Activities Chair-City Secretary Stacy Henderson 

• Service Tree Program-Mayor Jim Olk 
• Chili Cook-off – Councilmember Steve Duke 
• Stick Horse Rodeo-Mayor Pro-Tem Peele 
• Talent Show 
• Costume Contest 
• Scarecrow Contest-Park & Open Space Board 
• Founders Educational Display (Community Center)-Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
• Characters in Costume 
• Face Painting 
• Balloons 
• Dunk Tank-Public Works Director Stanton Foerster 
• KLB Booth-Park & Open Space Board 
• Bounce Houses 
• Booths 
• NTMWD Booth 
• GCEC Booth 
• Carnival Booths/Games for Children 
• School Bands 
• Parade 
• National Anthem 
• Petting Zoo/Pony Rides 
• Blackland Prairie Raptors Center 
• Fire Department Activities-Chief Kitchens 
• Chuck Wagon 
• Ice Cream (church?)  

 
Food & Refreshment Coordinator-Planning Coordinator Donna Bradshaw 
 
Logistics-Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Accounting and Purchasing-Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar 
 
Promotions/Advertising/Sponsorship-City Manager Joni Clarke 
 
Volunteer Coordinator-Citizen Rebecca Mark 
 
Scarecrow Contest-Members of the Park and Open Space Board 
 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City of Lucas 
Park & Open Space Board Agenda 

Request May 26, 2015 
 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
 
N/A  
 
Motion:  
 
N/A 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space  

Agenda Request 
May 26, 2015 

 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider reviewing the inventory of existing parks and open space to facilitate updating the 
Comprehensive Plan and to provide guidance to staff on conducting a community survey 
regarding parks, open space and recreation needs. 
 
Background Information:  

 
Staff would like to hear from the Parks and Open Space Board updates they would like to 
propose to the Comprehensive Plan relating to the following: 

 
1. Review inventory of existing parks and recreation fields.  
 Now that the Parks Board has had an opportunity to tour the existing park facilities and the 

City as a whole, an update to the Comprehensive Plan to reflect the community’s future 
needs for parks and recreation fields is needed.  Section 6 of the Comprehensive Plan is 
attached that outlines an inventory of existing facilities and open space that was conducted 
in 2005.  This document can be used as a guide to update our current inventory. 

 
2. Consider conducting a community survey of park and recreation field needs. 
 The next step to determine the desires of the community would be to conduct a community 

survey and poll the residents of the community to assess their needs as it relates to parks 
and open space.   Attached are the Goals and Objectives of the vision of Parks and Open 
Space that was outlined in the existing Comprehensive Plan for the city. 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
1. Section 6 of the Comprehensive Plan 
2. August 2005 Parks and Open Space survey  
3. Goals and Objectives for Parks and Recreation Opportunities 
4. Inventory/Opportunities/Standards from the Comprehensive Plan 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
NA 
 
Motion:  
NA  





























Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space  

Agenda Request 
May 26, 2015 

 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider cancelling the June 23, 2015 Parks and Open Space Board meeting.  
 
Background Information:  
 
The week of June 23, 2015 the Development Services Director and City Manager will be out of 
the office and currently there are no items for consideration scheduled for that meeting.   
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends cancelling the June 23, 2015 Parks and Open Space Board meeting. 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to cancel the June 23, 2015 Parks and Open Space Board meeting.  


	00 - regular agenda
	Agenda
	Lucas Parks and Open Space Board Meeting
	May 26, 2015
	7:00 PM
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Parks & Open Space Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, May 26, 2015 at 7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As authoriz...
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda
	Certification



	01 - minutes
	01a - 04-21-2015 POS minutes
	Parks and Open Space
	Board Meeting
	April 21, 2015
	7:00 p.m.
	City Hall – 665 Country Club Road
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda


	01b - 04-29-2015 POS minutes
	Parks and Open Space
	Board Meeting
	April 29, 2015
	7:00 a.m.
	City Hall – 665 Country Club Road
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda


	02 - Founders Day 2015
	03 - Comp plan cs
	03a - Section 6.8
	03b - POS survey
	03c - goals and objectives
	03d - inventory
	04 - cancel meeting

